## COUNCIL

# Tuesday, 4 November 2008

Present: Councillor Terry Brown (Mayor), Councillor Iris Smith (Deputy Mayor), Councillors Ken Ball, Julia Berry, Judith Boothman, Alan Cain, Pat Case, Henry Caunce, Alan Cullens. Magda Cullens, Mike Devaney, David Dickinson, Doreen Dickinson, Dennis Edgerley, Anthony Gee. Peter Goldsworthy. Marie Gray. Pat Haughton, Harold Heaton, Catherine Hoyle. Keith Iddon, Kevin Joyce, Hasina Khan, Roy Lees, Laura Lennox, Adrian Lowe, Marion Lowe, Greg Morgan, Peter Malpas. Thomas McGowan, June Molyneaux, Simon Moulton, Mick Muncaster, Mark Perks, Debra Platt, Geoffrey Russell, Rosie Russell, Edward Smith, Joyce Snape, Ralph Snape, John Walker, Stella Walsh and Peter Wilson

#### 08.C.190 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Nora Ball, Eric Bell, Alistair Bradley and Shaun Smith.

#### 08.C.191 MINUTES

It was moved by the Executive Leader, seconded by Councillor Pat Case (Deputy Leader of the Council) and subsequently **RESOLVED** that the minutes of the Council meeting on 23 September 2008 and the Extraordinary Meeting on 17 October 2008 be confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Mayor subject to the Leader providing a written response under Minute 08.C.181, question 3 under Council Procedure Rule 7.

## 08.C.192 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS

No Member declared an interest in relation to matters under consideration at the meeting.

#### 08.C.193 MAYORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS

Remembrance Day - Sunday, 9 November

The Mayor invited all Members to accompany him in the main procession to St Laurence's Church for the Remembrance Sunday Service at 10.00am, followed by a wreath laying service at the Cenotaph in Astley Park.

Quiz Night - Friday, 14 November

The Mayor reported that he was holding a quiz night at Sacred Heart Social Centre on Worthy Street on Friday, 14 November at 8.00pm in aid of his Charity Appeal.

Soul Night - Friday, 21 November

The Mayor reported that he was holding a Soul Night in the Lancastrian Suite on Friday, 21 November.

#### 08.C.194 PUBLIC QUESTIONS

There had been no requests from any member of the public to speak at the meeting on any of the agenda items.

1

COUNCIL

### 08.C.195 THE ANNUAL REFRESH OF THE CORPORATE STRATEGY FOR 2008/09-2010/11

The Executive Member for Policy and Performance presented a proposed Corporate Strategy for 2008-9 to 2010-11.

The Corporate Strategy sets out the Council's long term vision, priorities and strategic outcomes and targets for the next three years. It is reviewed and refreshed on an annual basis with new key projects introduced to support achievements against outcomes and targets.

The Corporate Strategy is developed alongside the Sustainable Community Strategy and Local Area Agreement and is the key document in the Council's business planning process.

The report detailed changes to the wording of two of the Council's strategic objectives and a number of the long-term outcomes. The Strategy contained a number of new measures, many of which were due to the replacement nationally of the Best Value Performance Indicators with the National Indicators set. The Strategy set out 33 projects, 23 of which were new, the rest of which were carried forward from last year for completion in 2009.

In debating this item, the following amendments were put forward for consideration:

#### 1. Column 1 (Strategic Objectives)

An amendment was proposed by Councillor Dennis Edgerley and seconded by Councillor Adrian Lowe to add to the strategic objective of strengthening Chorley's economic position in the Central Lancashire Sub-Region "and act as an engine for economic growth in the sub-region".

The amendment was put to the vote and LOST.

## 2. Column 1 (an additional key project)

An amendment was proposed by Councillor Adrian Lowe and seconded by Councillor Anthony Gee to add an additional key project.

"To develop and implement a free parking scheme for the first hour, on town centre car parks".

The amendment was put to the vote and LOST.

#### 3. Column 4 (revised outcome 4.3)

Following a proposal by Councillor Roy Lees, the Leader agreed to investigate an amendment to the measure for outcome 4.3 to 'improve' rather than 'maintain' the current level of biodiversity as assessed in the Local Development Framework.

## 4. Column 5 (an additional key project)

An amendment was proposed by Councillor Laura Lennox and seconded by Councillor Dennis Edgerley to add an additional key project.

"To work with Redrow who have offered to transfer 200 houses to the social rented sector".

The Leader reported that Redrow had not made such an offer.

An amendment was put to the vote and LOST.

## 5. Column 5 (an additional key project)

An amendment was proposed by Councillor Laura Lennox and seconded by Councillor Dennis Edgerley to add an additional key project.

"That the Council will develop and implement a solution for temporary accommodation".

The amendment was put to the vote and CARRIED.

## 6. Column 5 (an additional key project)

An amendment was proposed by Councillor Dennis Edgerley and seconded by Councillor Adrian Lowe to add an additional key project.

"That the Council investigate and pursue the provision of a sporting village".

The amendment was put to the vote and LOST.

## 7. Column 4 (an additional key project)

Following a proposal by Councillor Edgerley, the Leader agreed that if the following key project wasn't already underway, then he would ensure there was provision for this project to be included in next year's budget.

"To establish an invest to save programme for the Council's use of energy".

## 8. Column 5 (amendment to a proposed key project)

An amendment was proposed by Councillor Dennis Edgerley and seconded by Councillor Adrian Lowe to amend the wording of the proposed key project by adding the words "and implement' to the following key project.

"Develop (and implement) seven neighbourhood action plans working with Parish Councils, other partners and community groups".

The amendment was put to the vote and LOST.

## 9. Column 5 (amendment to long-term outcome)

Following a proposal by Councillor Dennis Edgerley, the Leader agreed to investigate the inclusion of either a long-term outcome or project in relation to "the improvement and extension of the green corridor of Chorley".

## 10. Column 6 (additional key project)

An amendment was proposed by Councillor Dennis Edgerley and seconded by Councillor Ken Ball to add an additional key project.

"To review expenditure on the corporate and democratic core with a view to reducing it and increasing expenditure on frontline services like streetscene".

The amendment was put to the vote and LOST.

# RESOLVED – That the proposed Corporate Strategy for 2008/09 to 2010/11 be agreed subject to the following changes:

1. An additional key project that "the Council will develop and implement a solution for temporary accommodation" be approved.

- 2. The Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader of the Council:
  - investigate the change of wording to the measure for outcome 4.3 to "improve" rather than maintain the current level of biodiversity as assessed in the Local Development Framework; and
  - investigate the inclusion of an additional long-term outcome or project under Column 5 to "improve and extend the green corridor of Chorley".
  - agreed that if the project "to establish an invest to save programme for the Council's use of energy" is not underway in the current year then there will be provision for the project included in the Corporate Strategy.

Mayor